Public Document Pack

A
Petition Hearing Cabinet Member for
Planning,
Transportation and
Recycling
Date:

WEDNESDAY 17 APRIL
2019

Time:

7.00 PM

Venue:

COMMITTEE ROOM 3 CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting
Details:

Members of the Public and
Media are welcome to attend.
You can view the agenda
at www.hillingdon.gov.uk or
use a smart phone camera
and scan the code below:

Cabinet Member hearing the petition(s):
Councillor Keith Burrows, Cabinet Member
for Planning, Transportation and Recycling
(Chairman)
How the hearing works:
The petition organiser (or his/her nominee)
can address the Cabinet Member for a
short time and in turn the Cabinet Member
may also ask questions.
Local ward councillors are invited to these
hearings and may also be in attendance.
After hearing all the views expressed, the
Cabinet Member will make a formal
decision. This decision will be published
and sent to the petition organisers shortly
after the meeting confirming the action to
be taken by the Council.
Published: Tuesday 9 April 2019
Contact: Anisha Teji
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first
Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Useful information for
petitioners attending
Travel and parking
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a
short walk away. Limited parking is available at
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and
how to book a parking space, please contact
Democratic Services. Please enter from the
Council’s main reception where you will be
directed to the Committee Room.
Accessibility
For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use in the various meeting rooms.
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their
way to the signed refuge locations.

Agenda
CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS MAY ATTEND
1

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

2

To confirm that the business of the meeting will take place in public.

3

To consider the report of the officers on the following petitions received.
Please note that individual petitions may overrun their time slots. Although individual petitions
may start later than advertised, they will not start any earlier than the advertised time.

Start
Time

Ward

Page

Petition Request To Widen Victoria Road
To Allow Lorry Access And Provide
Parking Spaces

South Ruislip,
Manor and
Cavendish

1-6

Petition Requesting An Extension To The
Operational Times Of The West Drayton
Parking Management Scheme In Warwick
Road, West Drayton

West Drayton

7 - 12

Morgans Lane, Hayes - Petition
Requesting Traffic Calming Measures

Botwell

13 - 18

Botwell and
Townfield

19 - 30

8pm

Petition Regarding Pedestrian Safety
Improvements In Hayes Town Centre

Uxbridge South

31 - 40

8.30pm

Whitehall Road, Uxbridge - Petition
Requesting Traffic Calming Measures

4
7pm

5
7pm

6

7.30pm

7

8

Title of Report

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
PETITION REQUEST TO WIDEN VICTORIA ROAD TO ALLOW LORRY
ACCESS AND PROVIDE PARKING SPACES
Cabinet Member(s)

Councillor Keith Burrows

Cabinet Portfolio(s)

Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling

Officer Contact(s)

Steven Austin
Residents Services Directorate

Papers with report

Appendix A

1. HEADLINE INFORMATION
Summary

To inform the Cabinet Member that the Council has received a
petition requesting the removal of grass verges on Victoria Road,
Ruislip to create parking spaces.

Contribution to our
plans and strategies

The request can be considered in relation to the Council’s strategy
for on-street parking controls.

Financial Cost

There are no financial implications
recommendations to this report.

Relevant
Policy
Overview Committee

Residents, Education and Environmental Services POC

Ward(s) affected

South Ruislip, Manor and Cavendish

associated

with

the

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
Meeting with the petitioners, the Cabinet Member:
1.

Discusses with petitioners their concerns relating to lorry access along Victoria
Road between its junction with West Mead Road and Torcross Road;

2.

Advises petitioners that the Council will not, as a general rule widen highways at
the expense of long established grass verges;

3.

Notes that residents have previously rejected proposals for parking management
measures in this section of Victoria Road; and

4.

Instructs officers to commission a suitable 24/7 traffic survey which will identify
prevailing vehicle speeds, types and volumes.

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 1

Reasons for recommendations
To allow the Cabinet Member to discuss with petitioners their concerns and, if appropriate, add
aspects of their request for further investigation.
Alternative options considered / risk management
These will be discussed with petitioners.
Policy Overview Committee comments
None at this stage.

3. INFORMATION
Supporting Information
1.
A petition with 22 signatures has been submitted to the Council from residents in a
section of Victoria Road, Ruislip signed under the following heading:
“We the residents of Victoria Road, South Ruislip request that the Cabinet Member considers
the cutting back of verges giving due consideration to the trees on both sides of Victoria Road
from the Old Dairy Site to Torcross Road; thus taking cars back off the carriageway of this very
busy stretch of the Victoria Road to enable large vehicles to pass each other unhampered by
parked cars. The situation has become impossible 7 days a week, owning to the opening of the
Old Dairy Site, together with other retail stores. These new staggered spaces could also be part
of a Parking Management Scheme".
2.
Victoria Road is a long, straight, local distributor road which links Ruislip and South
Ruislip. The TfL London Buses 114 Bus Service between Mill Hill Broadway and Ruislip Station
runs along Victoria Road. South Ruislip Station is a short walk from Victoria Road and is served
by the Central and Chiltern rail lines.
3.
The principal section of interest to petitioners would appear to lie between the Torcross
Road and West Mead junctions, which mainly have residential properties situated on both sides.
At the southern end of this section of road is the large 'Old Dairy' residential and retail
development which includes a number of supermarkets, a multi-screen cinema and several
restaurants, together with a substantial residential development behind them.
4.
This section of Victoria Road has a carriageway width of approximately 9.0 metres, with
footways typically 4.5m of which 2.5m is hard footway and 2m is grass verge. Within the grass
verges are more than thirty mature trees, 14 lamp columns, two bus stops and their associated
infrastructure, and other street furniture.
5.
Immediately to the east of this section of Victoria Road, between Torcross Road and
West Mead, the residential area falls within Cavendish Ward (for example, Hartland Drive),
whilst immediately to the north of the Torcross Road junction, the continuation of Victoria Road
lies within Manor Ward. The Cabinet Member may take a view that the Ward Members in these
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 2

immediately adjacent wards may have pertinent views on any alterations to the arrangements
just outside their Wards in Victoria Road, should they believe these could have an impact on
their own residents. With that in mind, a copy of the draft report was shared with them for their
possible interest and comment. A location plan is attached as Appendix A.
6.
As the Cabinet Member will know, the Council does not widen existing roads at the expense
of long established grass verges. The costs would in any case include:
• constructing properly hardened verges, which would include setting the kerbs back with
new carriageway construction of sufficient strength of accommodate parked vehicles;
• moving or protecting buried services;
• installing new lamp columns in different locations;
• making alterations to the existing drainage (including gullies); and
• accommodating the established root-systems of mature trees in a manner which does
not damage them.
These and other aspects are often under-estimated by those who imagine that widening a road is
a simple exercise. Even if the Council were to accede to such a request, these essential works
would make the cost of such a project considerable.
7.
The spacing of the trees, and their substantial size, would mean that, at the very minimum,
an average of one parking space would be lost for each tree position, meaning that there would be
a net loss of kerb-side parking capacity of around thirty parking spaces from this aspect alone. On
the basis that petitioners made reference to 'giving due consideration to the trees on both sides of
Victoria Road' it is assumed that they are not asking the Council to consider cutting these down.
8.
The Cabinet Member may also wish to note that the removal of parking out of the line of the
main traffic flow on a road of this type may also have the unintended consequence of increasing
overall traffic speeds, with a consequent risk of an adverse effect on road safety. It is also likely
that a wider Victoria Road would attract more through-traffic, some it perhaps reassigning from
other broadly parallel local distributor roads such as West End Road and Field End Road.
9.
The Cabinet Member may wish to note that the petition itself was signed by 22 residents, all
of whom live in one section of Victoria Road between Nos. 389 and 428 (i.e. from West Mead to
Braintree Road - see map at Appendix) and yet the section of road they are asking for attention
extends over about two and half times that length. There are no signatures from residents living
between Braintree Road and Torcross Road who would also be affected by any proposal here,
including any measures involving changes to the parking arrangements.
10.
The Council has previously consulted residents in this section of Victoria Road on possible
options to amend the parking arrangements, but these were rejected by residents, many of whom
were concerned at the consequential loss of parking capacity that such a scheme would
necessitate. A possible layout with sections of double yellow line was also shared previously with a
Ward Member; it is likely that residents may understandably not like such a scheme as it would
mean a loss of parking, even if it would help alleviate the traffic flow issue.
11.
In light of the concerns from the petitioners, it is recommended that the Cabinet Member
meets with them, explains the fact that the Council will regrettably not sanction the widening of

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 3

Victoria Road, but discusses other ideas which the petitioners may wish to explore in order to
address the challenges they have identified.
12.
As an additional tool to help identify the issues in Victoria Road, the Cabinet Member may
wish to instruct officers to commission suitable independent traffic surveys which will provide data
on the types, numbers and speeds of vehicles using this section of Victoria Road.
Financial Implications
There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations to this report.
However if the Council was to consider changes to the road layout in Victoria Road, South
Ruislip, funding would need to be identified from a suitable source.

4. EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES
What will be the effect of the recommendation?
To allow the Cabinet Member to consider the petitioners request and available options the
Council has to address these concerns.
Consultation Carried Out or Required
As noted in the report, the Council has already undertaken a consultation with residents to
establish if there is overall support for the proposed waiting restrictions.

5. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Corporate Finance
Corporate Finance has reviewed the recommendations of this report and concurs that there are
no direct financial implications associated with this report.
Legal
There are no special legal implications for the proposal to informally consult residents on
parking restrictions in Victoria Road. Informally consulting residents is perfectly legitimate as
part of a listening exercise, especially where consideration of the policy, factual and engineering
issues are still at a formative stage.
In considering any informal consultation responses, decision makers must ensure there is a full
consideration of all representations arising including those which do not accord with the officer's
recommendations. The decision maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are
conscientiously taken into account.
If the decision maker recommends officers undertake a statutory consultation, the procedures
that should be followed in this case are set out in the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and The
Local Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (SI
1996/2489). There will also need to be consideration of Highways Act 1980, the Road Traffic

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 4

Regulation Act 1984, the Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2002, which govern
road traffic orders, traffic signs and road markings.
If specific advice is required, Legal Services should be instructed.

Corporate Property and Construction
None at this stage.
Relevant Service Groups
None at this stage.

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS
Petition received

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 5

Page 6

Agenda Item 5
PETITION REQUESTING AN EXTENSION TO THE OPERATIONAL TIMES
OF THE WEST DRAYTON PARKING MANAGEMENT SCHEME IN
WARWICK ROAD, WEST DRAYTON
Cabinet Member(s)

Councillor Keith Burrows

Cabinet Portfolio(s)

Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling

Officer Contact(s)

Kevin Urquhart
Residents Services Directorate

Papers with report

Appendix A

1. HEADLINE INFORMATION
Summary

To inform the Cabinet Member that a petition has been received
from the residents of Warwick Road, West Drayton, effectively
asking for the operational times of the West Drayton Parking
Management Scheme to be extended in the road.

Contribution to our
plans and strategies

The request can be considered in relation to the Council’s strategy
for on-street parking controls.

Financial Cost

There are no financial implications
recommendations to this report.

Relevant Policy
Overview Committee

Residents, Education and Environmental Services Policy Overview
Committee

Ward(s) affected

West Drayton

associated

with

the

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
Meeting with the petitioners, the Cabinet Member:
1. Listens to their request for the operational times of the West Drayton Parking
Management Scheme to be extended in Warwick Road, West Drayton.
2. Subject to the outcome of the above, decides if the request for an extension to
operational times of the parking scheme in Warwick Road, West Drayton and any
other roads in the immediate surrounding area should be added to the Council’s
future parking scheme programme for informal consultation with residents.

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 7

Reasons for recommendations
To allow the Cabinet Member to discuss with petitioners their concerns and, if appropriate, add
their request to the parking schemes programme.
Alternative options considered / risk management
These will be discussed with petitioners.
Policy Overview Committee comments
None at this stage.

3. INFORMATION
Supporting Information
1.
A petition with 25 signatures has been received from residents of Warwick Road, West
Drayton. The petition outlines the following:
"I enclose a petition from the residents of "Warwick Road" requesting the change in band from
WD1 to U1 (9am to 10pm 7 days a week).
The request reflects the serious issues residents face due to commuters parking their car after
current enforcement hours."
2.
A plan showing Warwick Road and the surrounding area is attached as Appendix A to
this report. Warwick Road is a residential road situated to the east of West Drayton town centre
with pedestrian access possible to West Drayton Station. Part of the road has through access
between Station Road and Brandville Road with a cul-de-sac section leading to another
residential road Lantern Way. Currently, Warwick Road and the majority of the other roads in
the surrounding area benefit from being part of the West Drayton Parking Management
Scheme, which operates 'Monday to Friday 9am to 5pm'. The petition indicates that residents
are finding it increasingly difficult to find a parking space when the parking scheme is not in
operation due to commuter parking probably associated with the close proximity of West
Drayton Station and the town centre.
3.
Although petitioners have mentioned that they would like their road to be changed to over
from Zone WD1 to Zone U1 permits, it is believed that they are asking for scheme times be
extended the same as some of the roads within Zone U1 scheme which operate "9am to 10pm
7 days a week". Petitioners are effectively requesting that the times of the existing parking
scheme be extended to prevent non-residential parking. The Cabinet Member will be aware of
similar requests in recent years from other roads in Hillingdon are usually related to roads close
to town centres. The Council has extended the operational times of other parking schemes to
'9am to 10pm everyday' such as in parts of Zones U1 and U3 in Uxbridge which have proven
successful in preventing non-residential parking. This approach could therefore be considered
as a possible option for the residents of Warwick Road.

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 8

4.
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member discusses with petitioners their concerns
and if considered appropriate, asks officers to add this request to the future parking scheme
programme to conduct informal consultation to extend the operational times of the West
Drayton Parking Management Scheme in Warwick Road. As there are adjoining roads the
Cabinet Member may also wish for officers to discuss the matter further with the local Ward
Councillors before commencing consultation to see if they would like any of the other nearby
roads to also be included within the same consultation. The results of the consultation can then
be reported back to the Cabinet Member and local Ward Councillors for further consideration.
Financial Implications
There are no direct financial implications associated with the recommendations to this report.
However if the Council was to consider extending the operational times of the West Drayton
Parking Management Scheme in Warwick Road and the surrounding area, funding would need
to be identified from a suitable source.

4. EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES
What will be the effect of the recommendation?
To allow the Cabinet Member to consider the petitioners request and available options the
Council have to address these concerns.
Consultation Carried Out or Required
If the Council subsequently decides to extend the operational times of the West Drayton Parking
Management Scheme in Warwick Road or any other roads in the surrounding area, consultation
will be carried out with residents to establish if there is overall support.

5. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Corporate Finance
Corporate Finance has reviewed this report and confirms that there are no direct financial
implications associated with the above recommendations.
Legal
There are no specific legal implications for the proposal to informally consult residents on
parking restrictions. Informally consulting residents is perfectly legitimate as part of a listening
exercise, especially where consideration of the policy, factual and engineering issues are still at
a formative stage.
In considering any informal consultation responses, decision makers must ensure there is a full
consideration of all representations arising including those which do not accord with the officer's
recommendations. The decision maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are
conscientiously taken into account.

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 9

Should there be a decision that further measures are to be considered then the relevant
statutory provisions will have to be identified and considered at that time.
Corporate Property and Construction
None at this stage.
Relevant Service Groups
None at this stage.

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS
Petition received January 2019

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 10

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
MORGANS LANE, HAYES – PETITION REQUESTING TRAFFIC CALMING
MEASURES
Cabinet Member(s)

Councillor Keith Burrows

Cabinet Portfolio(s)

Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling

Officer Contact(s)

Steven Austin
Residents Services Directorate

Papers with report

Appendix A

1. HEADLINE INFORMATION
Summary

To inform the Cabinet Member that the Council has received a
petition from residents of Morgans Lane, Hayes concerned with
vehicle speeds and drivers ignoring the 'one-way' working.

Contribution to our
plans and strategies

The request can be considered as part of the Council’s annual
programme of road safety initiatives.

Financial Cost

Subject to the outcome of discussions with petitioners the Cabinet
Member may be minded to commission speed and traffic surveys.
The current cost of these is in the region of £80 to £85.

Relevant Policy
Overview Committee

Residents’, Education and Environmental Services Policy
Overview Committee

Ward(s) affected

Botwell

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
Meeting with the petitioners, the Cabinet Member:
1.
Listens to their concerns with excessive traffic speeds and drivers ignoring the
'one-way' working in Morgans Lane, Hayes.
2.
Notes the results of the previous speed and traffic surveys undertaken in Morgans
Lane, Hayes.
3.
Subject to the outcome of the above, asks officers to undertake further traffic
surveys, at locations agreed by the petitioners and then report back to the Cabinet
Member.
Reasons for recommendations
The petition hearing will provide a valuable opportunity to hear directly from the petitioners of
their concerns and suggestions.
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 13

Alternative options considered / risk management
None at this stage.
Policy Overview Committee comments
None at this stage.

3. INFORMATION
Supporting Information
1. A petition with a total of 28 signatures from residents of Morgans Lane has been received
by the Council. In an accompanying statement submitted with the petition the lead petitioner
states: "Vehicles driving up the wrong way on one-way Morgans Lane, Hayes UB3. Vehicles
driving too fast around the bend on Wood End Green Road to Morgans Lane". The lead petitioner
then goes on to state that residents would like the following outcome: "Speed Humps, Visible
Road Markings and signs for one-way".
2.
Morgans Lane and Wood End Green Road are mainly residential roads close to local
shopping parades on Uxbridge Road. Hayes Police Station is located on the junction of
Morgans Lane and Uxbridge Road and Hayes End Recreation Ground is nearby. At their widest
point, that carriage way of Morgans Lane and Wood End Green Lane are approximately 10
metres wide. Parking is unrestricted in these roads so vehicles are observed to park on both
sides of the road. A plan of the area is attached as Appendix A to this report.
3. The petition is asking for traffic calming measures and improvements to the signs and road
markings advising drivers of the 'one-way' working made even more surprising by the location of
Hayes Police Station at the end of the road. This moving traffic restriction was introduced in 1963.
Police recorded collision data for the three years to the end of August 2018 (the latest data
available) indicated that there have been no incidents on Morgans Lane or Wood End Lane but
there have been four incidents on the Uxbridge Road close to the junction of Morgans Lane.
4. The Cabinet Member will recall that in 2012, the Council commissioned independent speed
and traffic surveys at two locations in Morgans Lane, one just before the bend in the road and
another in the straight section just after. The data captured revealed the overall so-called '85th
percentile speeds (defined as the speed at or below which 85% of the traffic is travelling) were
24mph on the approach to the bend and 27mph after. At the time there was not sufficient evidence
to warrant the installation of traffic calming measures. However, a flashing bend warning sign was
installed at this location which is subsequently moved to various different sites across Hillingdon.
5. It is clear from the petition that residents are concerned about vehicle speeds and have taken
the opportunity to put these in a petition. It is therefore suggested that the Cabinet Member meets
with petitioners and listens to their concerns in greater detail. Subject to the outcome of these
discussions, the Cabinet Member could recommend undertaking further independent speed and
traffic surveys in Morgans Lane, at locations to be agreed with the petitioners, in order to help
inform any possible solutions.

Financial Implications
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 14

If the Cabinet Member is minded to agree to undertake independent speed and traffic surveys the
cost is usually in the region of £80 to £85 per location which will be funded through an allocation
from within the Transportation Service. If works are subsequently required, suitable funding will
also be identified from within the Transportation Service.

4. EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES
What will be the effect of the recommendation?
To allow the Cabinet Member an opportunity to discuss in detail with petitioners their concerns
Consultation Carried Out or Required
None at this stage.

5. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Corporate Finance
Corporate Finance has reviewed the recommendations to this report and concurs with the
financial implications as set out.
Legal
There are no special legal implications for the proposal to discuss with petitioners their concerns
with excessive traffic speeds in Morgans Lane, Hayes which amounts to an informal consultation.
A meeting with the petitioners is perfectly legitimate as part of a listening exercise,
especially where consideration of the policy, factual and engineering issues are still at a formative
stage. Fairness and natural justice requires that there must be no predetermination of a decision
in advance of any wider non-statutory consultation.
In considering any informal consultation responses, decision makers must ensure there is a full
consideration of all representations arising including those which do not accord with the officer
recommendation. The decision maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are
conscientiously taken into account.
Should there be a decision that further measures are to be considered then the relevant statutory
provisions will have to be identified and considered.
Corporate Property and Construction
There are no corporate property and construction implications arising from the
recommendations in this report.
Relevant Service Groups
None at this stage.

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 15

Petition received

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 16

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
PETITION REGARDING PEDESTRIAN SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS IN HAYES
TOWN CENTRE
Cabinet Member(s)

Councillor Keith Burrows

Cabinet Portfolio(s)

Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling

Officer Contact(s)

Hayley Thomas
Residents Services Directorate

Papers with report

Appendix A - Station Road - original informal crossing layout
Appendix B - Station Road - new Zebra crossing layout
Appendix C - Botwell Lane, Coldharbour Lane, Pump Lane and
Station Road roundabout layout
Appendix D, E and F - Botwell Lane and Coldharbour Lane 'Rhino
Imprint' drawing and images

1. HEADLINE INFORMATION
Summary

To inform the Cabinet Member that the Council has received a
petition regarding pedestrian safety improvements in Hayes Town
Centre.

Contribution to our
plans and strategies

The request can be considered as part of the Council’s strategy for
road safety.

Financial Cost

There are no financial implications associated with the
recommendations to this report.

Relevant Policy
Overview Committee

Residents, Education and Environmental Services.

Ward(s) affected

Botwell & Townfield.

2. RECOMMENDATION
Meeting with the Petitioners, the Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and
Recycling:
1. Discusses with petitioners their concerns with pedestrian safety within Hayes Town
Centre;
2. Considers the extensive consultation undertaken with residents and businesses,
including the formation of the Hayes Town Centre Stakeholder Working Group;
3. Takes into account the meeting held with petitioners in October 2018 to discuss their
concerns;

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Part I - Public

Page 19

4. Notes the revised design to incorporate a new formal crossing in Station Road,
outside the Hesa clinic;
5. Notes officers' request for Transport for London to carry out a review of the crossing
time for the new signalised pedestrian crossings in Hayes Town Centre;
6. Acknowledges that the raised tables that have been implemented as part of the
scheme have been built to their maximum permissible height and cannot be increased in
height as a consequence;
7. Notes the implementation of 'Rhino Imprint' to support not only the traffic calming
measures for the 20mph scheme but also assist pedestrians by providing a 'midway
point' when using various informal crossing points;
8. Ask officers to carry out a review of all 20mph signage to determine if improvements
can be made; and
9. Reassures the petitioners that in common with all improvement schemes, officers will
continue to monitor the scheme to determine that the objectives of the improvements are
being met.
Reasons for recommendations
The petition hearing will provide a valuable opportunity to hear directly from the petitioners of
their concerns and suggestions.
Alternative options considered / risk management
These will be discussed with petitioners.
Policy Overview Committee comments
None at this stage.

3. INFORMATION
Supporting Information
1. A petition with 478 signatures has been submitted by the Hayes Town Business Forum to
the Council with the following request:
'We the undersigned welcome the improvements to Hayes Town but believe that with the
reintroduction of through traffic further action is needed by the Council to promote the
safety of pedestrians by:
 Providing a controlled crossing near the Hesa Centre in Station Road;
 Addressing the risks to pedestrians crossing between the NatWest Bank and
Lloyds Bank:
 Increasing the time for pedestrians on the new Botwell Lane crossing;
 Improving the markings for informal crossing points in both Coldharbour Lane and
Station Road;

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Part I - Public

Page 20




Increasing the height of the road humps to slow down the traffic, and
Enforcing both the 20mph speed limit and the controls on parking'

2. As the Cabinet Member will recall, the Council successfully secured £6m worth of 'Major
Scheme' funding from Transport for London to carry out a range of highways improvements within
Hayes Town Centre. The Council undertook initial consultation with residents and businesses in
Hayes Town to seek their views on possible options for town centre improvements in Hayes.
Feedback gained from this consultation was used to shape the design and layout of the
improvements for Hayes Town Centre, which included opening Station Road to two-way traffic,
dedicated cycle lanes throughout the town centre and improved street lighting and tree planting.
3. A second consultation on a detailed design was then conducted to allow residents and
businesses to view and comment on the new layout. Nearly 4,500 leaflets were delivered to
businesses and residents in Hayes Town. Large scale plans were available to view in Botwell
Green Leisure Centre and officers were on hand on specified dates to discuss the proposals
with residents and businesses. Two main articles were placed in the local Gazette to promote
the consultation as well as information being provided on the Council's website. A total of 652
responses were received during this consultation and where possible, amendments were made
to the scheme to incorporate some of these suggestions.
4. A final scheme layout was submitted to Transport for London for approval to proceed to
implementation and approval was subsequently given. Works began on the initial phase in
2015, with the majority of the scheme now subsequently complete.
5. Throughout the consultation and implementation stage, a total of 43 meetings were held
with the Hayes Town Centre Stakeholder Working Group, which included representatives from
the Hayes Town Business Forum, Hayes Town Partnership and ward members from both
Botwell and Townfield wards. This provided an opportunity for business and resident groups to
raise concerns and suggestions relating to the improvements.
6. The Cabinet Member will also be aware that the Council has also secured additional
funding from Transport for London and through Section 106 development money to extend the
town centre improvement scheme in Station Road, from its junction with Crown Close to North
Hyde Road, to complement the forthcoming introduction of Crossrail services at Hayes &
Harlington Station.
7. Following receipt of the petition, officers corresponded with the lead petitioner to
demonstrate how the issues raised by them were acknowledged and were already being
addressed as part of the Hayes Town Centre Major Scheme. The hope was to assist petitioners
and the Cabinet Member alike by obviating the need for a full petition hearing, the process
being the term 'Intelligent Intervention'. A subsequent meeting was held with members of the
Hayes Town Businesses Forum to discuss their petition on 18 October 2018, followed by a
letter outlining the issues discussed at the meeting and subsequent actions to be taken by
officers. However, the petitioners have nevertheless asked to continue with the petition process
to give them an opportunity to discuss their concerns directly with the Cabinet Member.
8. Accordingly, the next section of this report effectively serves to brief the Cabinet Member
on what has already been explained to the lead petitioner and members of the Hayes Town
Business Forum.

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Part I - Public

Page 21

9. The first issue raised within the petition highlighted business and residents concerns with
the lack of formal crossing facilities outside the Hesa Centre in Station Road. The junction of
Station Road, Crown Close and St. Anselm's Road is the end point of the current phase of
improvement works in Hayes Town Centre. The initial plans for this area were to introduce an
informal crossing point at the proposed raised junction, similar to those implemented in
Coldharbour Lane, as shown in Appendix A. In addition to the petition from the business forum,
officers have also received a number of requests from residents and ward councillors asking for
a formal crossing facility in this location. Further investigation has been undertaken by the lead
designers of the next phase of improvements, including pedestrian count survey in this location,
and an amended design has been proposed which includes the introduction of a Zebra crossing
in this location, as shown in Appendix B.
10. The second point asked for the Council to address the risks to pedestrians crossing
between the NatWest bank and Lloyds bank in Coldharbour Lane/Botwell Lane. The area
referred to by the petitioners lies between the two newly implemented roundabouts and is
shown on Appendix C. During the initial design phase of the Hayes Town Centre scheme,
various traffic modelling work was undertaken to ensure the opening of Station Road and the
implementation of the new roundabouts and traffic signals would not have a significant impact
on traffic in all directions. The introduction of any form of controlled crossing between the new
roundabouts could have significant impact on traffic movements. It is for this reason that four
controlled crossings have been provided at each entry point to the new configuration in Botwell
Lane, Coldharbour Lane, Pump Lane and Station Road to ensure adequate safe provision for
pedestrians. These have also been fitted with TfL's 'Countdown' system which provides
pedestrians with a timer showing the remaining crossing time in that sequence. The
configuration has also met with all safety consideration of the independent road safety audit. As
an additional measure, officers are investigating the possibility of introducing a coloured surface
treatment on the approach to the roundabouts to highlight to drivers that caution is needed.
11. The petitioners requested that the crossing time for pedestrians is increased at the Botwell
Lane signalised crossing. As the Cabinet Member will be aware, all traffic signals are managed
and maintained by Transport for London. The signals in Botwell Lane are linked with nearby
pedestrian crossings in Coldharbour Lane, Pump Lane and Station Road to ensure the network
is operating at optimum capacity. Following receipt of the petition additional requests have been
received from ward members to review the timings of the new crossing in Station Road. To
determine if any further improvements can be made, officers have requested that TfL carry out
a review of the signal timings at Botwell Lane and Station Road and the Council is awaiting the
outcome of this review.
12. The petitioners also requested that improvements are made to the markings for informal
crossing points in both Coldharbour Lane and Station Road and an increase is made to the
height of the speed tables throughout the scheme. As the Cabinet Member may be aware, the
final element of the town centre improvement works to be completed was the implementation of
a 'Rhino Imprint' central median strip within Coldharbour Lane, Botwell Lane and the stretch of
road linking the two new roundabouts as shown on Appendix D, E and F. Due to the narrow
width of the carriageway, it was not possible to implement the 'imprint' in Station Road. Rhino
Imprint is synthetic asphalt which gives a block paving effect on roads. The imprint marks an
area of the carriageway which requires special consideration and highlights to drivers that the
surface may be shared. The asphalt material used is durable and can cope with highly trafficked
areas unlike standard block paving which has a tendency to come loose and fail. The
implementation of the imprint is intended to assist pedestrians by providing an informal midway
point when crossing at the various informal crossing points throughout the scheme. With

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Part I - Public

Page 22

regards to the height of the speed tables throughout the scheme, these have been designed
and implemented in accordance with Department for Transport guidelines. As the Cabinet
Member will be aware, both Coldharbour Lane and Station Road accommodates a significant
number of bus routes and any form of table or hump implemented has a maximum height and
gradient to ensure they do not disrupt the buses movement across them. All speed tables and
raised junctions within the scheme have been built to the maximum height and gradient possible
for a bus route in accordance with the normal design standards, and therefore are unable to be
amended.
13. The final point asked for further enforcement of the 20mph speed limit and parking controls
throughout the scheme. As the Cabinet Member will be aware, the principle of a 20mph zone is
that the associated traffic calming implemented slows vehicle speeds and in this way the zone
becomes self-enforcing. Enforcement of speeds is strictly speaking a matter for the Metropolitan
Police, as the Council does not have the necessary powers to undertake enforcement against
speeding. As part of the Hayes Town Centre Major Scheme a number of measures have been
implemented to allow the zone to become self enforcing such as speed tables, raised junctions,
controlled crossings and roundabouts. As noted earlier, a 'Rhino Imprint' central median strip
has also been implemented to support the 20mph zone, by giving the impression of a more
confined carriageway and therefore reducing vehicle speeds. As a result of the follow up
meeting with the petitioners, a review of the 20mph signage will be undertaken to ascertain if
additional signage is needed. Officers will also explore whether 20mph roundels could be
installed on the road surface itself. With regards to the enforcement of parking controls within
the town centre, the Council's Civil Enforcement Officers carry out daily visits in two teams to
the town centre for a maximum of 21 hours per day between them and do their upmost to
capture those that contravene the parking controls. Targeted enforcement has also taken place
at key times of the day which have been highlighted by residents and businesses. Since the
opening of Station Road in January 2018, 371 penalty charge notices have been issued to
vehicles contravening the parking restrictions in the town centre and a further 1281 for vehicles
parking within the bus stops.
14. In summary, whilst noting the extensive dialogue already undertaken with the petitioners,
the Cabinet Member may wish to meet with them and discuss their concerns with pedestrian
safety in Hayes Town and what further solutions, if any, would be appropriate to address these
issues. In common with all new improvement schemes, officers will continue to monitor the
scheme to ensure the objectives of the scheme are being met.
Financial Implications
There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations to this report. If works
are subsequently required, suitable funding will need to be identified within the Major Schemes
project for Hayes Town Centre.

4. EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES
What will be the effect of the recommendation?
To allow the Cabinet Member an opportunity to discuss with petitioners their concerns in detail.

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Part I - Public

Page 23

Consultation Carried Out or Required
Two separate public consultations took place in September 2012 and December 2013. On both
occasions, consultation leaflets were delivered to nearly 4,500 Hayes residents as well as local
businesses. Plans were on display in Botwell Green Leisure Centre and officers were available
to answer residents’ and businesses questions. Both consultations were also advertised on the
Council website with an option to submit their comments online as well as in writing.

5. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Corporate Finance
Corporate Finance has reviewed the report and concur with the financial implications set out
above.
Legal
In considering any informal consultation responses decision makers must ensure there is full
consideration of all representations arising including those which do not accord with officer
recommendations. The decision maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are
conscientiously taken into account.
Should there be a decision that further measures are to be considered then the relevant
statutory provisions will have to be identified and considered at that time.
Corporate Property and Construction
None at this stage.
Relevant Service Groups
None at this stage.

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS
Petition received - July 2018.

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Part I - Public

Page 24

Page 25

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. (100032379) (2018)

|

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right (2018)

LEGEND

New 200 x 127mm Marshalls Key kerb
(half battered laid flat)

NSE
LMS

New PCC Blister Tactile Paving in red
400x400x65mm
New PCC Blister Tactile Paving in buff
400x400x65mm

Dia
g. 1
040
7.5
.4
5

0
2.0

CS

NEW CCTV & POST (TO BE
INSTALLED BY OTHERS)

New 400x390mm granite Trief kerb

ROA
D

4.75

FERMINA HAI
R&
BEAUTY

HORIZON
ELECTRONI

RI

CAR PARK

For continuation see
drawing no.
1000004539-4-120
-02 VP2

New 50x150mm PCC Edging kerb

ST A

New loading only sign (S1) to be
mounted on new post

ASHA TANDOO

ENTRANCE
TO BANK

New 150x300mm Granite kerb

3.85

New Belisha Beacon
B

New reflective keep left bollard (TMP Heritage
or similar approved)
Proposed Sheffield cycle stand (3no)

2.75

Diag.

1004

2.80

3.00

BIN

Diag. 1018.1

3.50
(100)

New lane markings to Diag.no.1009 (100mm
wiide)
New double yellow line road markings to
Diag.no.1018.1 (100mm wide)
New Give way marking to Diag.no.1023

4.29

New Bus cage markings to Diag.no.1028.1
(100mm wide)

6.90

New directional arrow marking to Diag.no.1038
(4m height)

Diag.
1003

HOUSEBOX

UK PIZZA &
FRIED
CHICKEN

TRE

NEPALESE
CEN

1.75

BIN

12.65
Diag. 101
0

0.65

15.46
Diag. 1004

New lane markings to Diag.no.1004 (100mm
wide)

2.00
Diag.
1001.5

Diag. 1004

IO
STAT

Diag. 101
3.20
3.15
0

AD
N RO

2
Diag.106

Diag. 1018.1 (100)

STATION RO
AD
7.35

New Give way at roundabout markings to
Diag.no.1003.3 (200mm wide)

Diag. 1003

4.29
3.55

Diag.1062

Diag. 1009

New Give way road markings to Diag.no.1003
(200mm wide)

New hatched road marking to Diag.no.1040
(100mm wide)
New Elephant footprint markings to
Diag.no.1055.3 (300mm wide)
Diag.
1062

New cycle logos to Diag.no.1057 (height
varies)

C RO

New Lighting column (Subject to LBH approval)

LOSE

Page 26

WN C

New Falcorelax long seat (2.081m length)
BIN

New rubbish bin
New sign and post
New sign on existing post/lighting column
Relocated sign and post
Relocated sign on new post

- 09/11/2018 ORIGINAL ISSUE
Rev Date
Description

BR GS KL
Drn Chk App

This drawing has been specifically prepared to meet the requirements of the named client and may
contain design and innovative features which differ from conventional design standards.

Unit 2 Holford Yard
London
WC1X 9HD
Tel. 0330 0080 855
Mail. info@projectcentre.co.uk
Web. www.projectcentre.co.uk

Client

Project
HAYES TOWN CENTRE CCM
STATION ROAD

Drawing Title
TRAFFIC SIGNS, ROAD MARKINGS
AND STREET FURNITURE
SHEET 3 OF 3
Drawing Status

FOR APPROVAL
Drawn

BR

Designed

GS

Date

JULY 2018

Office Registered in England No. 02625312 | Unit 2 Holford Yard, London, WC1X 9HD | www.projectcentre.co.uk

PLOT DATE:

21/11/2018 01:03:00 |

CAD REFERENCE:

G:\Project Centre\CAD\00-PROJECT\1000004539\1000004539-4-120.dwg | Kly | ----

Scale

1:200

Size

A1
Rev

Drawing No.

1000004539-4-120-03

-

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Imprint : pattern imprinted synthetic asphalt
Coulsdon High Street, London Borough of Croydon
Following a major diversion of the A23 around
Coulsdon, a significant regeneration scheme was implemented and completed in the mid-2000s. The scheme
was designed to improve pedestrian facilities. Over the
following three years significant failure of the granite
paving materials created a potential hazard for both
pedestrians and motorists, becoming loose and unsightly .
An investigation carried out by EM Highways and the
London Borough of Croydon determined that the best
solution would be to remove the failed materials and
revert to a standard asphalt construction topped with
Imprint.
The Imprint material was used to define the crossing
points and to replace the original median strip. The
scheme was delivered ahead of the planned programme, resulting positive feedback from the client
and multiple stakeholders

Potential hazards for pedestrians and motorists

Page 30

Agenda Item 8
WHITEHALL ROAD, UXBRIDGE – PETITION REQUESTING TRAFFIC
CALMING MEASURES
Cabinet Member(s)

Councillor Keith Burrows

Cabinet Portfolio(s)

Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling

Officer Contact(s)

Sophie Wilmot
Residents Services

Papers with report

Appendix A - Location Plan
Appendix B - Survey Locations
Appendix C - zebra crossing feasibility design

1. HEADLINE INFORMATION
Summary

To inform the Cabinet Member that the Council has received a
petition from parents of pupils attending Whitehall Infant and
Junior School requesting traffic calming measures along Whitehall
Road, Uxbridge.

Contribution to our
plans and strategies

The request can be considered as part of the Council’s annual
programme of road safety initiatives.

Financial Cost

Subject to the outcome of discussions with petitioners the Cabinet
Member may be minded to commission speed and traffic surveys.
The current cost of these is in the region of £85, per location and
can be funded from within existing revenue budgets for the
Transportation service.

Relevant Policy
Overview Committee

Residents’, Education and and Environmental Services.

Ward(s) affected

Uxbridge South

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
Meeting with the petitioners, the Cabinet Member:
1.

Listens to their request for traffic calming measures in Whitehall Road, Uxbridge.

2.
Notes the work undertaken by the Council's Term Consultants Project Centre on
measures for Whitehall Road, details of which are set out in the body of this report.
3.
Notes the results of previous traffic and pedestrian surveys undertaken along
Whitehall Road, details of which are set out in the body of this report.
4.
Subject to the outcome of the above, considers asking Officers to undertake
further traffic surveys, at locations agreed by the petitioners, and to then report back.
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 31

5.
Notes the work being undertaken by the Council's Road Safety and School Travel
Team, as detailed within the body of this report, and encourages both schools to work
with the Council on travel initiatives.
Reasons for recommendations
The petition hearing will provide a valuable opportunity to hear directly from the petitioners of
their concerns and suggestions.
Alternative options considered / risk management
None at this stage.
Policy Overview Committee comments
None at this stage.

3. INFORMATION
Supporting Information
1.
A petition with 122 valid signatures has been received by the Council, requesting traffic
calming measures outside the rear entrance to Whitehall Infant and Junior Schools on Whitehall
Road, Uxbridge. The petition outlines the following:
'Parents and staff of both Whitehall Infant and Junior Schools are extremely concerned at the lack
of traffic calming measures on Whitehall Road, outside the rear entrance to both schools. There
have been a number of 'near misses' when parents/children are crossing the road to enter the
school premises. At present, there are no traffic calming measures in close proximity to the
entrance and vehicles travel, at, or in excess of 30 miles per hour which puts the lives of children
and parents in danger. We are asking that you review and install some measures to significantly
improve the safety of children and their parents whilst arriving and leaving the school premises.
We have raised the petition and please find attached 124 signatures from concerned Hillingdon
residents asking that your implement appropriate measures to improve the safety of those
crossing Whitehall Road.'
2.
The main entrance to both Whitehall Infant and Junior Schools is on Cowley Road, with
the access to the school on Whitehall Road providing a rear entrance point at pick up and drop
off times only. Both of the schools currently have around 400 pupils each on the roll.
Neither
Whitehall Infant nor Junior schools currently have up to date School Travel Plan documents,
although they are beginning to work with the Council's Road Safety and School Travel Team on
various initiatives currently run by the team.
3.
Whitehall Road, Uxbridge runs from its junction with Cleveland Road to Hillingdon Road,
although no access is provided on Hillingdon Road from Whitehall Road. There are a number of
residential roads leading off of Whitehall Road, most notably Hinton Road; Myddleton Road;
Walford Road and Chiltern View Road. The speed limit for the entire length of Whitehall Road is
30mph as denoted by the presence of street lighting. There are formalised parking bays along
the road and related parking restrictions. A location plan is provided in Appendix A.

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 32

4.
In 2017, the Council commissioned consultants to undertake a study of The Greenway and
to examine the potential of the provision of a zebra crossing on Whitehall Road outside the rear
entrance to the school. As part of the considerations pedestrian counts were undertaken both to
the north and south of the rear access in order to identify demand for a formal crossing in this
area. A summary of these surveys are provided in Table 1. A location plan of the surveys is
provided in Appendix B.

Table 1: Summary of pedestrian counts outside rear of Whitehall School
Survey
North of School
South of School
Total
Period
Access
Access
E to W
W to E
E to W
W to E
E to W
W to E
AM PEAK
31
55
80
20
111
75
PM PEAK
29
81
22
24
51
105
7am to 7pm
185
248
239
157
424
405
5.
The results show that on average there are around two people crossing the road in each
direction per minute in the AM and PM peak periods.
6.
The Council undertook automated traffic counts in November 2016 at three locations along
Whitehall Road: north of Myddleton Road; near Uxbridge Children Centre and south of Chiltern
View Road. A summary of the 85th%tile speeds recorded during this survey are provided in table,
2. The survey locations are shown in Appendix B.
Table 2: Summary of 85th%tile speeds recorded during 2016
surveys.
Survey Location
85%tile speed per direction (mph)
Northbound
Southbound
North of Myddleton Road
23
22
Near Uxbridge Children's Centre
28
29
South of Chiltern View Road
26
27
AVERAGE
26
26
7.
The summary of the results show that the average 85th%tile speed is at or just below the
30mph which is the current speed limit for the road. The Cabinet Member will be aware that the
so-called 85th percentile speed is the speed at or below which 85% of traffic is travelling, and is
the standard robust statistical tool used by traffic and road safety professionals when analysing
speed trends. This data is now two years old and consequently the Cabinet Member may be
minded to consider commissioning of further traffic surveys to identify if any changes to vehicle
speeds have occurred. The current cost of one ATC survey for the period of one week is £85.
The total for the three locations would be £255.
8.
Accident data has been provided by Transport for London, for the most recent five year
period available, up to June 2018. During this time period, there has been a total of two personal
injury accidents, both of which are detailed below:
•
•

Hinton Road j/w Whitehall Road: accident occurred in light, dry conditions, resulting in
slight injury to a pedal cyclist following a collision with a car.
Whitehall Road 56m N of j/w Burness Close: accident occurred in dark, dry conditions,
resulting in serious injury to a pedal cyclist following a car vehicles negligently opening car
door into the path of the pedal cyclist.

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 33

9.
As part of the consideration for the potential for a zebra crossing along Whitehall Road, a
standard PV² calculation was undertaken. This is a calculation set by the Department for
Transport for assessing the need for pedestrian crossing facilities by calculating the conflict
between pedestrians and vehicles. The results for the PV² calculation show that a crossing in this
area would be statistically unjustified due to the current low levels and speeds of traffic and
pedestrians. However, a feasibility design of a zebra crossing on Whitehall Road has been
considered.
10.
The feasibility design for a zebra crossing in this location has been undertaken by the
Council's Term Consultants Project Centre. The feasibility proposal includes a build-out on each
side of the road in line with the current parking bays to improve visibility for pedestrians waiting
to crossing. A total of two parking bay will be lost, one on each side of the road to accommodate
the crossing zigzag markings and improve visibility. A copy of the design is provided in Appendix
C. There are currently no plans to install this crossing at this time due to the installation currently
not being supported by traffic data.
11.
Both the Infant and Junior School are beginning to work with the School Road Safety and
Travel Team on travel initiatives such as pedestrian training and Bikeability. The schools will be
encouraged to get involved in other initiatives run by the Council such as the Parent Parking
Pledge and Junior Road Watch; details of these schemes are provided below:
•

•

The Council's Parent Parking Pledge initiative can be tailored specific to each school
dependent on their travel and safety concerns around the site. Parents are encouraged to
sign up to the pledge and in turn receive a car window sticker which highlights they have
accepted the schools’ policy on driving in and around the school area.
Junior Roadwatch gives primary school children the opportunity to take part in
speed awareness engagement in their local community near their school. Children aged 9
to 11 will work with the Council's Road Safety and School travel Team and police officers
to educate speeding motorists on the importance of road safety.

12.
In conclusion, the current results of traffic, speed and accident data, held by the Council,
do not in themselves justify the installation of a zebra crossing or traffic calming on Whitehall
Road. However, following the hearing of this petition, the Cabinet Member may be minded to
instruct fresh traffic surveys to be undertaken to determine if there have been changes in traffic
patterns along Whitehall Road, which may support the testimony of the petitioners. In the short
term the Cabinet Member may also be mined to encourage both schools to work with the Council's
Road Safety and School travel team on travel initiatives.
Financial Implications
If the Cabinet Member is minded to agree to undertake independent speed and traffic surveys the
cost is usually in the region of £80 to £85 per location which could be funded through an allocation
for the transportation and projects service. If works are subsequently required, suitable funding
will be identified from Revenue Budgets within the Road Safety programme.

4. EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES
What will be the effect of the recommendation?
To allow the Cabinet Member an opportunity to discuss in detail with petitioners their concerns
PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 34

Consultation Carried Out or Required
None at this stage.

5. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Corporate Finance
Corporate Finance has reviewed the recommendations in this report and concurs with the
financial implications as set out.
Legal
There are no special legal implications for the proposal to discuss with petitioners their request
for traffic calming measures in Whitehall Road, which amounts to an informal consultation. A
meeting with the petitioners is perfectly legitimate as part of a listening exercise, especially where
consideration of the policy, factual and engineering issues are still at a formative stage.
In considering the residents' responses, decision makers must ensure there is a full consideration
of all representations arising including those which do not accord with the officer recommendation.
The decision maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are conscientiously taken
into account.
Should there be a decision that further measures are to be considered then the relevant statutory
provisions will have to be identified and considered at that time.
Corporate Property and Construction
There are no Corporate Property and Construction implications arising from the
recommendations in this report.

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS
Petition received

PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 17 April 2019
Page 35

Whitehall Road

Whitehall Infant & Junior Schools

Page 36

Survey north of
school access

Rear access
to Whitehall
School

Survey south of
school access

Page 37

North of Myddleton
Road

Near Uxbridge
Children's Centre

South of Chiltern
View Road

Page 38

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. (100032379) (2017)

PLOT DATE:

28/02/2018 15:09:46 |

CAD REFERENCE:

G:\Project Centre\CAD\00-PROJECT\1000004290\1000004290-2-010.dwg | ADEVINE | ----

Office Registered in England No. 02625312 | Unit 2 Holford Yard, London, WC1X 9HD | www.projectcentre.co.uk

Page 39

|

EXISTING PARKING BAY
EXTENTS TO BE REDUCED

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right (2017)

PROPOSED CHANNEL KERB

PROPOSED CYCLE MARKING

AD
Drawing No.

15/11/17

1000004290-2-010-04

TH

Designed

Date

1:100

Scale

FT
A
R
FORD
INFORMATION

WHITEHALL SCHOOL CROSSING
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

Drawing Status

Drawn

-

THE GREENWAY AND WHITEHALL ROAD
ROAD SAFETY SCHEME

Drawing Title

Project

Client

Rev

-

A1

Size

Unit 2 Holford Yard
London
WC1X 9HD
Tel. 0330 0080 855
Mail. info@projectcentre.co.uk
Web. www.projectcentre.co.uk

This drawing has been specifically prepared to meet the requirements of the named client and
may contain design and innovative features which differ from conventional design standards.

AD SD PC
Drn Chk App

PROPOSED BLISTER TACTILE - RED

PROPOSED HB2 KERB

PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY
PAVING OVER-RUN

PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY
CONSTRUCTION

PROPOSED FOOTWAY
CONSTRUCTION

28/02/18 ORIGINAL ISSUE
Rev Date
Description

LEGEND:

PLOT DATE:

28/02/2018 15:09:52 |

CAD REFERENCE:

G:\Project Centre\CAD\00-PROJECT\1000004290\1000004290-2-010.dwg | ADEVINE | ----

Office Registered in England No. 02625312 | Unit 2 Holford Yard, London, WC1X 9HD | www.projectcentre.co.uk

SEE DRAWING 1000004290-2010-04

|

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right (2017)

SEE BELOW

CUTLINE

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. (100032379) (2017)

SEE ABOVE

CUTLINE

SEE DRAWING 1000004290-2-010-06
CUTLINE

Page 40

PROPOSED CYCLE MARKING

AD SD PC
Drn Chk App

AD
Drawing No.

WHITEHALL CYLE ROUTE
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
DRAWING 1 OF 2

15/11/17

1000004290-2-010-05

TH

Designed

Date

1:250

Scale

FT
A
R
FORD
INFORMATION
Drawing Status

Drawn

-

THE GREENWAY AND WHITEHALL ROAD
ROAD SAFETY SCHEME

Drawing Title

Project

Client

Rev

-

A1

Size

Unit 2 Holford Yard
London
WC1X 9HD
Tel. 0330 0080 855
Mail. info@projectcentre.co.uk
Web. www.projectcentre.co.uk

This drawing has been specifically prepared to meet the requirements of the named client and
may contain design and innovative features which differ from conventional design standards.

28/02/18 ORIGINAL ISSUE
Rev Date
Description

LEGEND:

